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BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In re: Petition for Approval of Special Gas 1 
Transportation Service Agreement with 1 
Florida City Gas by Miami-Dade County 1 
Through the Miami-Dade Water and 1 
Sewer Department 1 

Docket No.: 090539-GU 
Filed: March 18,20 1 1 

MOTION TO DISQUALIFY MIAMI-DADE WATER AND SEWER DEPARTMENT’S 
COUNSEL AND WITNESS BRIAN P. ARMSTRONG AND TO EXCLUDE THIS 

TESTIMONY AND, IN THE ALTERNATIVE, TO STRIKE TESTIMONY 

Florida City Gas (“FCG”), pursuant to Rule 28-106.24, Florida Administrative Code, 

hereby moves to disqualifj Miami-Dade Water and Sewer Department’s (“MDWASD”) counsel 

and witness Brian P. Armstrong (“Mr. Armstrong”) since MDWASD has impermissibly used 

Mr. Armstrong as both an attorney and a witness in this proceeding in violation of the Rules 

Regulating the Florida Bar, and to accordingly exclude this direct and rebuttal testimonies. In 

the alternative, Florida City Gas moves to strike portions of Armstrong’s direct and rebuttal 

testimony pursuant to Rule 1.140(f), Florida Rules of Civil Procedure, as being outside the scope 

of the issues and otherwise as impertinent, immaterial, redundant, and scandalous. In further 

support of this motion, Florida City Gas states: 

I. INTRODUCTION 

1. In this docket, the Commission is considering whether the 2008 Natural Gas 

Transportation Agreement (“2008 TSA”) between FCG and the MDWASD, concerning FCG’s 

transportation of natural gas to MDW’ASD’s facilities, should be approved. 

2. At its Agenda Conference on October 26, 2010, the Commission considered the 

threshold legal issue of whether the Commission had the jurisdiction to consider the 2008 TSA. 

A copy of the transcript from the October 26, 2010 Agenda Conference, in which the 



Commission considered its jurisdiction to consider the 2008 TSA at Item Number 19, is attached 

hereto as Exhibit “A” 

3. .it that Agenda Conference, counsel for MDWASD, Assistant County Attorney, 

Mr. Henry Gillman, introduced Mr. Armstrong to give MDWASD’s legal argument. Mr. 

Armstrong appeared as “Special Counsel” and identified himself as an attorney and member of 

the law firm of Nabors, Giblin & Nickerson, P.A.’ Mr. Armstrong, and only Mr. Armstrong, 

made MDWASD’s legal argument that the Commission lacked the jurisdiction to consider the 

2008 TSA.* Mr. Armstrong, and only Mr. Armstrong, offered MDWASD’s rebuttal legal 

argument as welIv3 The Commission ultimately decided that it had the jurisdiction and authority 

to consider the 2008 TSA in its Order Determining Jurisdiction, issued November 5 ,  2010.4 In 

the subsequent order on procedure, none of the issues identified for this docket include any of the 

legal issues decided by the Order Determining J~risdiction.~ MDWASD neither sought 

reconsideration of nor appealed the Order Determining Jurisdiction. 

4. MDWASD’s formal appearance of Mr. Armstrong as an attorney at the Agenda 

Conference is consistent with his prior involvement in the case. In June 2009 Mr. Armstrong 

called FCG’s counsel and represented that MDWASD still wanted to proceed with the 

Commission approving the 2008 TSA. In those communications, he specifically referred to 

MDWASD as “My client” and the context and tone of these communications, including his 

presentation of a draft petition, clearly indicate that MDWASD was using his services as an 

attorney. the attached Exhibit “B.” In the subsequent meeting involving the parties and 

Commission Staff on March 3, 2010, MDWASD’s representatives included Mr. Armstrong who 

See Exhibit A, P. 3, lines 15-18. 

See Exhibit A, p. 19, line 12 through p. 23, line 4. 
Order No. PSC- 10-067 1 -PCO-GU. 
Order No. PSC- IO-0730-PCO-GU. (Dec, 13,20lO), Order Determining Issues for Hearing. 

1 

* See Exhibit A, p. 3, line 21 through p. 8, line 12. 
3 
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w a s  known to be and identified himself as an attorney. MDWASD’s utilization of Mr. 

Armstrong as an attorney providing legal counsel and representation to MDWASD has been 

confirmed through discovery in this matter. Mr. Jack Langer, another MDWASD witness in this 

docket and consultant to MDWASD, through his consulting firm, specifically retained Mr. 

Armstrong to provide “legal advice” on behalf of Mr. Langer’s work for MDWASD. See 

MDWASD Exhibit “C,” Response to FCG Production of Documents Request No. 6 ,  

5 .  MDWASD’s reliance on Mr. Armstrong’s continuing service as an attorney for 

MDWASD was demonstrated again most recently during an informal conference call of the 

parties on March 1 1, 201 1. The purpose of this meeting was to allow FCG to ask and receive 

clarification regarding three Staff interrogatories. At the end of the call Mr. Armstrong launched 

into a brief speech in which, like his prefiled testimony, he accused FCG of failing to provide 

certain information and stated that FCG should not be allowed to provide such information‘‘this 

late” in the case. Mr. Armstrong asserted that MDWASD would file an appropriate motion to 

strike such evidence. MDWASD’s two attorneys of record on the call were silent and did not 

respond or make any comment in response to Mr. Armstrong’s promised legal motion by 

MDWASD. The promise or threat of legal action is something that would be said by an 

attorney, not a witness. 6 

6 .  On December 29, 2010, MDWASD submitted the direct testimony of h4r. 

Armstrong. In this testimony, Mr. Armstrong states that MDWASD asked him to ‘‘advise them 

in its dealings with FCG.”7 Mr. Armstrong then provides testimony concerning, inter a h :  (a) 

his policy recommendations to the Commission; (b) his belief that the 2008 TSA should be 

exempt from Commission jurisdiction; (c) his comments regarding the testimony of other 

The Motion was filed through Mr. Armstrong’s law firm on March 16,201 1, on behalf of the Miami-Dade 
County Attorney. ’ See Armstrong Direct, p. 2, lines 12-14. 
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MDWASD witnesses; (d) his comments regarding documents provided by FCG and 

Commission StafY, (e) his view on the Commission’s discretion to approve the 2008 TSA, (f) his 

belief that the “Incremental Cost Rates” identified by FCG in Exhibit JL-9 are inflated; (g) his 

views on how the Commission should consider the fbnds FCG recovers under the Competitive 

Rate Adjustment (“CRA”); (h) his views on FCG’s and (i) his opinion on what he believes 

the Commission should do with regard to the 2008 TSA. In his testimony Mr. Armstrong 

discloses his background as an attorney with utilities experience, but he does not state whether 

his prefiled testimony is being offered as an expert or as an attorney for MDWASD. In the 

absence of proffering him as an expert, he can only be considered a fact witness, especially since 

there are no legal or policy issues identified in this case requiring expert testimony tkom an 

attorney. 

7. On January 28, 2011, MDWASD submitted the rebuttal testimony of Mr. 

Armstrong. Although this testimony is couched as rebutting the direct testimony of FCG 

witnesses Bermudez and Williams, his testimony is actually dominated by legal argument. In his 

rebuttal, hlr. Armstrong: (a) suggests cross-examination of FCG witness WiIliams’; (b) offers 

legal analyses on how the Commission should proceedg; (c) argues the applicability of other 

Commission decisions with regard to the instant proceeding”; (d) offers his opinion on the 

behavior of FCG and its management”; and (e) essentially argues a motion in limine to exclude a 

hypothetical future filing by FCG in this docket.I2 

8. These facts together conclusively demonstrate that before and after the filing of 

direct and rebuttal testimony that MDWASD has used and continues to use Mr. Armstrong as an 

* 
order FSG to refund, retroactively, revenue received over the past few years . . . . .”) 

See Armstrong Rebuttal, p, 2, lines 4-8 (“I would ask Mr. Williams to consider whether the Commission can 

See Armstrong Rebuttal, pp. 2, line 9, through p.3, line 1 1. 
See Armstrong Rebuttal, p. 3, line 12, through p. 4, line 5. 
See Armstrong Rebuttal, p. 5, line 20, through p. 8, line I 1. ’’ See Armstrong Rebuttal, p. 8, line 17, through p. 9, line 19. 

9 

I O  

I I  
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attorney and legal counsel to MDWASD. Mr. Armstrong has represented himself to FCG as an 

attorney. He has formally appeared and acted before the Commissioners as an attorney. He 

continues to act as counsel and to provide legal argument on behalf of MDWASD. MDWASD’s 

utilization of Mr. Armstrong in this dual role, as both an attorney and as a witness is not 

permitted. The only remedy to MDWASD’s conduct is to dismiss Mr. Armstrong both RS a 

lawyer and as a witness and to exclude his testimony. 

II. ARGUMENT 

9. The Rules Regulating The Florida Bar, Rules of Professional Conduct, govern 

hou attorneys conduct themselves in proceedings before tribunals as well as in certain other 

contexts. Rule 1-10,l states that all members of The Florida Bar “shall comply with the terms 

and the intent of the Ruies of Professional Conduct as established and amended by this [Florida 

Supreme] court.’’ Mr. Armstrong is unambiguously a member of the Florida Bar and his 

obligations as an attorney in good standing to follow such rules cannot be disputed, whether as 

counsel or othemise. 

10. It is a matter of public record in this docket that MDWASD has introduced and 

utilized Mr. Armstrong as a lawyer representing MDWASD at the Commission Agenda 

Conference on October 26, 2010. This conduct as an attorney is consistent with his statements 

and conduct in his communications with FCG counsel in June 2009, the Staff workshop in 

March 2010, and the informal conference call on March 11, 2011. Notwithstanding 

MDWASD’s use of Mr. Armstrong as an attorney, MDWASD has filed both direct and rebuttal 

testimony of Mr. Armstrong. 

1 1 .  Is MDWASD using h4r. Armstrong as a witness or a lawyer in this case, or is he 

both? Subject to narrow and specific exceptions not applicable here, it is well settled that an 

attorney can appear in a case only as an attorney or only a witness but never both. As is 

5 



discussed more fully below, Rules 4-3.4(e) and 4-3.7 of the Rules Regulating the Florida Bar and 

the authorities and caselaw construing these rules, require that the Commission disqualify 

MDWASD’s use of Mr. Armstrong as both counsel and as a witness and strike his testimony. In 

the alternative, MDWASD’s prefiIed direct and rebuttal testimony of Mr. Armstrong should be 

stricken as improper testimony, 

A. The Commission Should Disqualify Mr. Armstrong as Counsel. 

12. Pursuant to Chapter 120, Florida Statutes, hearing officers in administrative 

proceedings hase the same power that courts exercise to disqualify a lawyer from representing a 

party to the proceeding if that representation would be in violation of law or the Rules of 

Professional Conduct applicable to 1a~yer s . l~  Rule 4-3.7(a), Rules Regulating The Florida Bar, 

Rules of Professional Conduct, “Lawyer as Witness,” states as follows: 

(a) When Lawyer May Testify. A lawyer shall not act as advocate at trial in 
which the lawyer is likely to be a necessary witness on behalf of the client unless: 

(1) the testimony relates to an uncontested issue; 
(2) the testimony will relate solely to a matter of formality and there is no reason 
to believe that substantial evidence will be offered in opposition to the testimony; 
(3) the testimony relates to the nature and value of legal services rendered in the 
case; or 
(4) disqualification of the lawyer would work substantia1 hardship on the client. 

13. The comment to Rule 4-3.7 states that “[clombining the roles of advocate and 

witness can prejudice the tribunal and the opposing party and can also involve a conflict of 

interest between the lawyer and client.” It further states: 

The tr ier of fact may be conhsed or misled by a lawyer serving as both advocate 
and witness. The combination of roles may prejudice another party’s rights in the 
litigation. A witness is required to testifl on the basis of personal knowledge, 
while an advocate is expected to explain and comment on evidence given by 

l 3  See Docket No, 090478-WS, Order No. PSC 10-0222-PCO-WS (April 7, 2010). See also Lee v. Flu. Dep’t of 
Ins, 586 So. 2d 1 185, 1188 n. 3 (Fla. 1st DCA 1991); Prof’l Practices Council v. Green, DOAH Case No. 79-2275, 
1980 W L  14909. 
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others. It may not be clear whether a statement by an advocate-witness should be 
taken as proof or as an analysis of the proof. 

In Scott v. State,“ the Florida Supreme Court statcd that a purpose of Rule 4-3.7 “is to prevent 

the evils that arise when a lawyer dons the hat of both an advocate and witness for his or her own 

client, Such a dual role can prejudice the opposing side . . . .” In Alliedsignal Recovery Trusf v. 

Aliiedsignul, Inc. ,I5 the Second District Court of Appeal noted that “the dual role could prejudice 

the opposing party by bolstering the lawyer’s testimony for his client because it comes from an 

advocate.” Regardless of whether there is any actual or perceived prejudice when the attorney 

becomes a witness (not subject to an exception), the result is clear and direct - the attorney is 

disqualified from the proceeding. 

14. Rule 4-3.7 clearly proscribes what MDWASD has attempted - using Mr. 

Armstrong as both lawyer and witness. The policy reasons behind the Florida Bar’s prohibition 

against such dual roles ring equally true in a proceeding before the Commission. Mr. 

Armstrong’s attempt to wear two hats - one as the attorney for MDWASD, the other as a witness 

who advocates various legal positions and offers his bolstering opinion on the evidence and 

testimony of other MDWASD Mitnesses in the same proceeding - is precisely the justification 

for such a prohibition contained in the comments to Rule 4-3.7, approved by the Florida 

Supreme Court, The comment states that a “witness is required to testify on the basis of personal 

knowledge, while an advocate is expected to explain and comment on evidence given by others.” 

It further states that “[ilt may not be clear whether a statement by an advocate-witness should be 

taken as proof or as an analysis of the proof.” That is exactly what MDWASD has attempted in 

’‘ 717 So. 2d 908,910 (Fla. 1998). 

’’ 934 So. 2d 675,678 (Fla. 2d DCA 2006). 
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this proceeding. 

one remedy - complete disqualification. 

The bright line in Rule 4-3.7 has been crossed by MDWASD and there is only 

15. There is no dispute: MDWASD has had Mr. Armstrong appear in this docket as 

an attorney for MDWASD. h4r. Armstrong was clearly retained as legal counsel. MDWASD 

had him provide argument as legal counsel on behalf of MDWASD at the October 26, 2010 

Agenda Conference. MDWASD has filed his direct and rebuttal testimony in anticipation of 

being a witness for MDWASD at the final hearing in June. As recently as March 11,201 1, Mr. 

Armstrong advocated for the exclusion of FCG evidence and asserted that appropriate legal 

motions would be filed against such er<dence. This dual role is contrary to the Florida Bar's 

rules and ethical obligations of attorneys, Accordingly, the only remedy is for the Commission 

to disqualify Mr. Armstrong from further representation and participation on behalf of 

MDWASD as an attorney . 16 

B. 

16. 

The Commission Should Exclude Mr. Armstrong as a Witness. 

As discussed above, Mr. Armstrong has appeared in this proceeding as an 

attorney representing MDWASD, and yet MDWASD has now also proffered Mr. Armstrong as 

witness through prefiled direct and rebuttal testimony, In disqualifying Mr. Armstrong as an 

attorney the Commission should also disqualify and exclude him as a witness for the same 

reasons. 

'' Disqualification of Mr. Armstrong will not leave MDWASD without legal counsel as both Mr. Gillman and Mr. 
Hope from the County Attorney's oftice would remain as counsel of record. 
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17. This dual role as labyer and witness clearly and unquestionably runs afoul of 

Rule of Professional Conduct 4-3.4(e), ‘‘Fairness to Opposing Party and Counsel,” which 

provides: 

A lawyer shall not: 

(e) in trial, state a personal opinion about the credibility of a witness unless the 
statement is authorized by current rule or case law, allude to any matter that the 
lawyer does not reasonably believe is relevant or that will not be supported by 
admissible evidence, assert personal knowledge of facts in issue except when 
testifying as a witness, or state a personal opinion as to the justness of a cause, the 
culpability of a civil litigant, or the guilt or innocence of an accused . . . . 

Contrary to this rule, Mr, Armstrong offers his opinion on the factual testimony of other 

MDWASD witnesses, he states his opinion on the credibility of the FCG witnesses, and he offers 

his legal analysis on issues already decided by the Commission. 

18. Mr. Armstrong is not and should not be considered a “witness” as that term is 

defined and understood by law. Section 90.604, Florida Statutes, states that “[A] witness may 

not testi@ to a matter unless evidence is introduced which is sufficient to support a finding that 

the witness has personal knowledge of the matter.” Mr. Armstrong has not admitted any 

personal knowledge of the events that led to the petition in this proceediig, other than in his 

capaciQ and work as legal counsel for MDWASD. He does not testify to any personal 

experience in the events associated with the 1998 TSA or the negotiation, drafting, review, 

submission, or withdrawal of the 2008 TSA in either his direct or rebuttal testimonies. Since 

MDWASD has not identified Mr. Armstrong as an expert witness and there is no legal or other 

issue identified requiring expert legal testimony, his opinion testimony also falls outside the 

scope of Section 90.701, Florida Statutes, which pennits a lay witness to draw inferences or offer 

an opinion “about what he or she perceived.” 
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19. MDWASD’s proffer of a witness lacking such personal knowledge or an expert to 

address issues requiring expert testimony is compounded by the self-serving witness bolstering 

employed by this testimony. Florida courts have followed Rule 4-3.4(e), holding that “[ilt is 

,917 L C  improper for an attorney to give a personal opinion as to the justness of the cause . . . . A 

lawyer’s expression of his personal opinion as to the credibility of a witness, or his personal 

knowledge of facts, is fundamentally improper.”” C O W  have filrther held that it is improper 

for an attorney to attempt to bolster the credibility of his or her party’s own witnesses by offering 

his or her personal opinion on the witness.lg 

20. As an attorney Mr. h s t r o n g ’ s  testimony, like most of the testimony, violates 

Rule 4-3.4(e) and the persuasive authority construing it. For example, h4r. Armstrong in his 

Direct Testimony attempts to bolster the credibility of Mr. ShafTer this way: 

Q. DOES MIAMI-DADE’S COST OF SERVICE WITNESS SAFFER AGREE 
WITH THE POSITIONS OF MIAMI-DADE AS YOU HAVE JUST 
EXPRESSED THEM? 

A. Yes. Mr. Saffer testifies that he concurs in each of these positions based upon 
his many years of service in many proceedings and in several states as a cost of 
service expert. Mr. Saffer M e r  presents evidence that the revenue derived by 
FCG under the 2008 Agreement rates does indeed cover FCG‘s true incremental 
costs. 20 

In a example of multiple testimony violations, Mr. Armstrong is attempting to both acknowledge 

his own lack of personal knowledge of the facts under the guise of “policy” testimony: 

Q. MIAMI-DADE WITNESS HICKS HAS TESTIFIED THAT REGARDLESS 
OF WHETHER THE COMMISSION APPROVES THE RATES IN THE 2008 
AGREEMENT, THE COMMISSION SHOULD APPLY NEW RATES IT MAY 
DETERMINE ONLY PROSPECTIVELY FROM TWE DATE A COMMISSION 
ORDER BECOMES FINAL. DO YOU AGREE WITH HIS PROPOSAL AS A 
MATTER OF GOOD POLICY? 

” Servis v. State, 855 So. 2d 1190, 1194 (Fla 5th DCA 2003). 
I B  Muhammadv. Toys “R” Us, Inc., 668 So. 2d 254,258 (Fla. 1st DCA 1996). 
l9 See Semis, 855 SO. 2d at I 194-95. 
’O Armstrong Direct Testimony, p. 18, lines 15-22. 
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A. Yes. Mr. Hicks proposes that if the 2008 Agreement and associated rates are 
not approved that they should remain in place at least until a new rate is 
established. Therefore, he proposes that the Commission order FCG to refund the 
payments which Miami-Dade paid to FCG, under protest, in excess of the 
payments which would have been required under the rates in the 1998 Agreement, 
Amendment to the 1998 Agreement and the 2008 Agreement which are all 
identical rates. I concur with Mr. Hicks that based on the fats presented by 
Miami-Dade and a simple matter of equity, FCG should be required to refund 
such over-payments to Miami-Dade?’ 

Various Florida courts have reversed lower tribunals for permitting attorneys to offer opinions on 

evidence, testimony, and witness credibility during closing arguments.22 A brief review of Mr. 

Armstrong’s direct and rebuttal testimonies show that his testimony is comprised of his opinion 

on the case, his legal analysis of matters before this Commission, including matters previously 

decided by this Commi~sion,2~ his commentaries and support for MDWASD’s witnesses, his 

comments on the credibility of FCG‘s witnesses, and inflammatory accusations against FCG. 

Attorneys who try to be witnesses in the same case are clearly prohibited by Rule 4-3.4(e) and 

Florida courts. In fact, Florida courts have warned trial judges to take appropriate measures to 

prevent lawyers from such a dual role during closing  argument^?^ I f  such opinions ate improper 

by lawyers during closing, they cannot become proper by dressing up the lawyer as a witness. 

21. There is no current rule or caselaw authority that authorizes an attorney to 

simultaneously make these kinds of statements regarding evidence, witnesses credibility, legal 

analysis, friendly bolstering, and other such non-fact-based testimony as MDWASD has prefiled 

Armstrong Direct Testimon} , p. 29, line 16 through p. 30, line 6. 
See Semis, 855 So. 2d at 1197 (reversing and remanding conviction based on prosecutor’s stating personal 

opinion during closing argument); Muhammad, 668 So. 2d at 258-59 (reversing and remanding matter for new trial 
because of the collective import of counsel’s personal injections, and irrelevant and inflammatory remarks); Pippin 
u. Laroskynski, 622 So. 2d 566, 569 (Fla. 1st DCA 1993) (reversing and remanding for new trial based, in part, on 
counsel’s expression of personal outrage). 

At pages 4-7 of his Direct Testimony, Mr. Armstrong’s testimony concerns the issue of the Commission’s 
jurisdiction to approve the 2008 Agreement, which the Commission previously decided in its Order Determining 
Jurisdiction,, Order No. PSC-10-0671-PCO-FU (Nov. 5, 2010). Miami-Dade neither sought reconsideration nor 
appealed the Order Determining Jurisdiction. 

24 See Muhammad, 668 So. 2d at 259 n. 1. 
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fn this matter through Mr. Armstrong’s testimony. To the contrary, Florida law is clear that such 

conduct by attorneys is to not be tolerated by any tribunals including this Commission acting in 

its quasi-judicial capacity under Chapter 120. Accordingly, given his dual role as an attorney 

and witness, the Commission should not permit MDWASD to offer Mr. Armstrong’s testimony 

and the only appropriate remedy is for MDWASD’s witness Mr. Armstrong to be disqualified 

and excluded as a witness in this case.25 

C. The Commission Should Strike Portions of Armstmn&i Direct and Rebuttal 
Testimonies. 

In the event the Commission does not disqualifjl and exclude MDWASD’s 

witness, Mr. Armstrong, and his testimony, FCG respectfully requests that it strike portions of 

Mr. Armstrong’s direct and rebuttal testimonies. While Rule 28- 106.204, Florida Administrative 

Code, provides for the filing of motions, it does not specifically set forth the grounds upon which 

a motion to strike may appropriately be granted. Section 120.569(2)(g), Florida Statutes, 

provides that “[ilrrelevant, immaterial, or unduly repetitious evidence shall be excluded, but all 

22. 

other evidence of a type commonly relied upon by reasonably prudent persons in the conduct of 

their affairs shall be admissible, whether or not such evidence would be admissible in a trial in 

the courts of Florida.” Rule 1.14O(f), Florida Rules of Civil Procedure, provides that a party may 

move to strike or the court may strike redundant, immaterial, impertinent, or scandalous matter 

from any pleading at any time. This Commission has followed Rule 1.140(f)’s requirements in 

considering motions to strike testimony of witnesses?6 In addition, the Commission has stricken 

testimony that is beyond the scope of permissible testimony.27 Presiding officers in Commission 

proceedings have significant discretion when ruling on motions to strike testimony, but the party 

’’ While exclusion of a witness may seem to be a harsh result, such exclusion does no disservice to MDWASD. 
MDWASD has four other witnesses in this case, including two county employees who were involved in the process 
associated with the 2008 TSA, the County’s outside consultant who was also involved in the 2008 TSA process, and 
a cost of service witness to address the cost and other financial issues in this m e .  
26 See Docket No. 971220-WS, Order No. PSC-99-1809-PCO-WS (Sept. 20, 1999). ’’ Order No. PSC-06-0261-PCO-TP (March 28,2006). 
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filing testimony has an obligation to show that the testimony is legally proper upon a challenge 

by another party to the case.28 

23. As discussed above, Mr. Armstrong has appeared in this proceeding as 

MDWASD’s attorney. As a preliminary matter, it is not clear from his testimony whether 

MDWASD is relying on Armstrong as a lay witness or expert witness. To the extent he appears 

as a lay witness, the Commission should strike Mr. Armstrong’s testimony because he was not a 

fact witness to the issues before this Commission and therefore lacks personal knowledge, 

pursuant to Section 90.604, Florida Statutes. Further, his testimony is in the form of an opinion, 

and pursuant to 90.701, Florida Statutes, a lay witness is only permitted to offer opinion 

testimony based upon “what he or she perceived” and if such opinion testimony will not mislead 

the trier of fact to the prejudice of the objecting party, and the opinion does not require a special 

knowledge, skill, experience or training. h4r. Armstrong’s testimony is almost entirely his 

opinion on the evidence presented in this petition, and the quality and competence of evidence, 

friendly self-serving bolstering of MDWASD witnesses testimonies, legal analysis and rebuttal 

to the Commission’s Order on Jurisdiction, and other inflammatory and outrageous opinion 

testimony regarding FCG’s motions and actions that are prejudicial and highly inappropriate for 

testimony before this Commission.29 Together, the Commission should strike Mr. Armstrong’s 

direct and rebuttal testimonies pursuant to Rule 1.14O(f) because these portions are outside the 

scope of the issues in the case and are redundant, immaterial, impertinent, and/or scandalous, for 

the reasons that follow. 

*’ See Id. 
?’) FCG is aware that, in past decisions, the Commission has permitted some lay witness opinion testimony that may 
not be based on personal knowledge, and has further allowed some expert witness testimony that may appear to be 
beyond the expert’s purview, In those decisions, the Commission has generally concluded that it is in the position to 
view particular testimony in toto with all other record evidence in reaching its decision. See Docket No. 06065841, 
Order No. PSC-07-0270-KO-E1 (March 30, 2007). However, FCG will demonstrate that Mr. Armstrong’s 
testimony is so infected with irrelevant, immaterial, impertinent, redundant and scandalous matters that it must be 
stricken from this docket and Commission consideration. 
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1. Mr. Armstronp’s Direct Testimony. 

(a) 

At pages 2-4, and pages 29-30, MDWASD offers Mr. Armstrong’s “policy 

recommendations” to the Commission regarding the 2008 TSA. Mr. Armstrong’s policy 

recommendations to this Commission are irrelevant to the instant proceeding and should be 

Policy recommendations to the Commission 

24. 

stricken. This is not a case of general applicability where the Commission is going to be setting 

policy affecting all natural gas public utilities. Moreover, this testimony is not based on personal 

knowledge or testimony that can aid the Commission in rendering a decision, Therefore, this 

testimony should be stricken as irrelevant pursuant to Section 120.569(2)(g) and Rule 1.14O(f). 

(b) Reargument of Jurisdictional Issues 

At pages 4-7 of his direct, MDWASD has Mr. Armstrong testiQing in response to 25. 

the following question: “Do you believe the 2008 Agreement should be exempt from 

Commission consideration under the Rule you mentioned?’ Mr. Armstrong’s testimony 

concerns the issue of the Commission’s jurisdiction to approve the 2008 TSA. However, the 

Commission, in its Order Determining Jurisdiction, issued November 5 ,  2010, ruled that it had 

jurisdiction to consider the 2008 TSA pursuant to these statutes and Any objections 

MDWASD may have to this legal determination may be appropriate for an appeal but not the 

evidentiary hearing, especially since there are no legal jurisdictional questions identified for 

hearing. Mr. Armstrong even admits that the Commission has already decided this issue, stating: 

Although the Commission has issued an order finding that it has jurisdiction to 
address the 2008 Agreement and that Miami-Dade is not entitled to an exemption, 

’‘ Order No. PSC- 10-067 1 -PCO-GU. 
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these unique facts presented in an agreement between a government-owned 
utility, like Miami-Dade, and an investor-owned utility, like FCG, should be 
considered by the Commission when deciding whether to approve such an 
agreement.31 

It is simply not appropriate for MDWASD to offer a witness to testifL on a purely legal issue 

especially when there is no legal jurisdictional issue in the case. Further testimony and argument 

on this issue, after the Commission clearly disposed of it in a previous Order, is improper. 

Accordingly, the Commission should strike any and all portions of Armstrong’s testimony 

concerning the Commission’s jurisdiction to consider the 2008 TSA, as outside the scope of the 

case and irrelevant, impertinent, and scandalous pursuant to Section 120.569(2)(g) and Rule 

1.140(f). 

(c) Comments regarding the testimony of other MDWASD witnesses 

26. MDWASD has Mr. Armstrong testify at numerous points about the testimony of 

the other MDWASD witnesses. For example, at pages 7-10 of his direct, Mr. Armstrong 

comments on documents that were analyzed by MDWASD witnesses Ruiz and Hicks. He 

continues to reiterate Ruiz’s testimony at pages 12-14 of his direct. At page 18, he testifies that 

MDWASD witness Saffer agrees with the position of MDWASD as he (Armstrong) has 

expressed. At pages 20-23, his testimony is duplicative of other MDWASD witnesses. At 

pages 29-30, he testifies that he agrees with the testimony of MDWASD witness Hicks. And at 

pages 30-3 1, Mr, Armstrong summarizes the testimony of the other MDWASD witnesses with 

regard to their position regarding the 2008 TSA. 

27. These portions of MDWASD’s testimony offer little more than Mr. Armstrong’s 

rubber stamp of approval to the testimony of other MDWASD witnesses. Mr. Armstrong’s 

recanting of their testimony is redundant and impertinent, and should thus have no bearing or 

’’ Armstrong Direct Testimony, p. 5 ,  lines 13-1 8. 

15 



influence on the Commission’s decision.32 It is self-serving. it is friendly bolstering by a 

witness with no personal knowledge. FCG requests that the Commission strike these portions of 

MDWASD’s testimony of Mr. Armstrong as being irrelevant and unduly repetitious pursuant to 

Section 120.569(2)(g) and Rule 1,14O(f). 

(d) Comments regarding documents provided by FCG and Commission 
Staff 

28. At pages 10-14, 16, 18-20, 24-25, and 27-29, MDWASD has Mr. Armstrong 

opine on documents provided by FCG and Commission Staff in this proceeding. This testimony 

again echoes the testimony of the other MDWASD witnesses who also discuss these same 

documents but based upon their experience with them. Mr. Armstrong’s opinion on these 

documents is irrelevant and impertinent to this proceeding. it is again cumulative and is further 

support for the testimony of the other MDWASD witnesses. Accordingly the Commission 

should strike these portions of his testimony as being irrelevant and unduly repetitious pursuant 

to Section 120.569(2)(g) and Rule 1.140ff). 

(e) Views of the C W ,  the Tariff, and what the Commission should do 
with regard to the 2008 TSA 

29. At pages 16-18, 20-23, and 23-24, Mr. Armstrong offers his opinions and views 

on the Competitive Rate Adjustment (“CRA”), FCG’s Tariff and, ultimately, that the 

Commission should approve the 2008 TSA. MDWASD offers Mr. Armstrong’s biased and one- 

sided views of these controlling documents, stating, for example, that based on his own 

calculations under the CRA, “it is clear that FCG has been collecting a large windfall of 

hundreds of thousands of dollars each year.9y33 Again, as a lay witness without personal 

knowledge, Mr. Armstrong’s opinion on these documents and issues is irrelevant, unnecessarily 

32 See Rice-Lamar v. City of Ft. Laurderdale, 853 So. 2d 1125, 1133-34 (Fla. 4th DCA 2003) (holding that a 
motion to strike under Rule 1,14O(f) should be granted “if the material is wholly irrelevant, can have no bearing on 
the equities and no influence on the decision.”). 
33 Armstrong Direct, p. 18, lines 7-10. 
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cumulative, and impertinent to this proceeding. Accordingly the Commission should strike these 

portions of his testimony pursuant to Section 120.569(2)(g) and Rule 1.140(f). 

( f )  Scandalous material 

At numerous points in his direct testimony, Mr. Armstrong makes scandalous 

accusations against FCG that are unprofessional, unnecessary, self-serving, and not probative of 

any issue in the case. The Commission should not allow a MDWASD witness to make such 

impertinent and scandalous accusations and should strike them. For example: 

30. 

Page 9, lines 2-14: Mr. Armstrong states that “[ilnexplicably, FCG suggests that its 

‘O&M Expenses”’ have increased,” and later accuses FCG of changing its method for 

calculating its incremental operating cost; 

Page 13, lines 12-21, Mr. Armstrong accuses FCG of engaging in ‘%ad acts” including 

FCG’s allegedly “incredible claim to Miami-Dade that the 2008 Agreement is null and 

void” because of the delay in Commission consideration, accusing FCG of 

“mismanagement”; 

Page 17, lines 5-18, Mr. Armstrong analyzes the cost of service in light of the CRA, and 

opines that that the calculation “is highly inequitable for FCG’s customers and an 

unjustified windfall to FCG”; 

Page 22, lines 10-22, Mr, Armstrong attempts to frame the issue with regard to the Tariff, 

while ignoring MDWASD’s own confirmation and giying of express warranties that its 

service is subject to and in compliance with the tariff, by stating, “FCG failed to comply 

with its obligations and responsibilities to this Commission and to Miami-Dade under the 

KDS Rate Schedule. If FCG management and counsel identified the wrong rate 

schedule, if FCG entered a service agreement with Miami-Dade but failed to comply with 

special condition 4 or the requirements of section 1 of the Rate Schedule relating to the 
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distribution charge, is Miami-Dade to be held culpable? Is Miami-Dade to be forced to 

pay FCG higher rates if FCG is guilty of these transgressions? Is FCG to be permitted to 

escape the obligations and responsibilities it agreed to perform in the 2008 Agreement 

and which were incumbent upon it to perform under the KDS Rate Schedule, and instead 

be permitted to select another rate schedule to charge Miami-Dade, unilaterally, and in 

direct conflict with its KDS Rate Schedule which provides that the customer, in this 

proceeding, Miami-Dade, shall make the selection?’; 

Page 25, lines 9-18, Mr. Armstrong states, “FCG’s response to Miami-Dade’s very first 

interrogatory in this proceeding tells the entire story. FCG has not fulfilled its obligations 

to this Commission or to Miami-Dade under its KDS Rate Schedule. FCG has acted in 

total disregard of the requirements of its own tariff. FCG failed to perform the 

incremental cost of service study required by the KDS Rate Schedules which FCG 

selected and included in the 2008 Agreement. Even after Miami-Dade was forced to take 

the unusual step to file the 2008 Agreement for approval, FCG remained obstinate in its 

refusal to do what this Commission, through FCG‘s authorized tariff, requires. Miami- 

Dade should not be forced to suffer from such outrageous conduct and mismanagement 

by FCG’; 

Page 26, lines 24-25, Mr. Armstrong accuses FCG of violating its own tariff obligations; 

Page 27, lines 18-21, Mr. Armstrong states, “I am truly surprised by this response, Based 

upon my 25 years of experience advising and managing both public and private utilities, 

it is inconceivable that FCG would exercise such nonchalance in entering a long-term gas 

transportation agreement with its largest natural gas transportation customer”; and 

Page 28, lines 9-25, Mr. Armstrong accuses FCG of failing to reexamine its cost to serve 

Miami-Dade, which is states is “shocking[,]” and further states that, in what he considers 
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“is perhaps most disturbing, FCG admits that its cavalier attitude toward calculating the 

cost it has incurred and will continue to incur to serve Miami-Dade is founded upon its 

ability to recover any costs above the amount Miami-Dade pays from FCG’s other 

customers through the CRA mechanism. This is unacceptable conduct and reflects poor 

management.” 

These comments are comprised of nothing more than accusatory rhetoric that is intended to 

evoke an emotional response as opposed to the recitation of facts, of which he has no personal 

knowledge. Moreover, he has apparently failed to read the documents he questions, especially 

when MDWASD has made affulnative statement of compliance and warranted its conduct. This 

testimony is also irrelevant as well; it serves no purpose in this proceeding other than a cheap 

attempt to discredit FCG through name calling. The comments do not assist the Commission in 

arriving at a decision in this matter, and should be stricken as scandalous, irrelevant and 

impertinent pursuant to Section 120.569(2)(g) and Rule 1.140(f). 

2. Mr. Armstrow’s Rebuttal Testimony 

31. MDWASD’s rebuttal testimony of Mr. Armstrong is dominated by legal 

argument and additional scandalous statements. The Commission should strike this rebuttal 

testimony under Rule 1.140(f) as well for the following reasons. 

(a) 

At page 2, lines 2-8 of his rebuttal, Mr. Armstrong, in commenting on FCG 

Cross-examination of FCG witness Williams 

32. 

witness Williams’ direct testimony, states: 

I would ask Mr. Williams to consider whether the Commission can order FCG to 
refund, retroactively, revenue received over the past few years from the FCG 
customers through the CRA mechanism if such revenues were above FCG‘s costs 
and/or the receipt of such funds was not justified. 

The Commission should not permit MDWASD, through Mr, Armstrong’s rebuttal testimony, to 

cross or to suggest cross examination of another witness. That is the role af MDWASD’s 
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attorneys, not its witnesses. Further, there is no relevance to testimony that suggests a question 

of another witness. The Commission should strike this portion of Mi. Armstrong’s rebuttal 

testimony pursuant to Section 120.569(2)(g) and Rule 1.140(f). 

(b) 

At page 2, line 9, through page 3, line 1 1, Mr. Annstrong suggests how the 

Commission should proceed in this docket, and the ramifications of a ruling that is negative to 

FCG. MDWASD’s attempt to influence this Commission, by having Mr. Armstrong suggest the 

appropriate procedure for considering particular allegations in this case, is completely irrelevant 

and should have no influence on this Commission’s decision. Mr. Armstrong’s testimony in this 

section is scandalous and inflammatory, as it repeatedly accuses FCG of mismanagement based 

upon his own limited knowledge of the facts and self-serving spin. The Commission should 

strike this portion of Mr. Armstrong’s rebuttal testimony pursuant to Section 120.569(2)(g) and 

Rule 1 .140(f). 

Legal analyses and suggestion on Commission procedure 

33. 

(c) 

At page 2, line 25, through p, 4, line 5 ,  MDWASD offers Mr. Armstrong’s 

arguments on the applicability of several decisions of the Commission to the instant proceeding. 

This is pure legal argument disguised as testimony. The parties will have the opportunity to 

make legal argument and discuss the applicability or inapplicability of past Commission and 

court precedent in the post-hearing briefs. The Commission should not pennit MDWASD to 

make such an argument through Mr. Armstrong’s testimony. The Commission should strike this 

portion of hlr. Armstrong’s rebuttal testimony as being irrelevant, impertinent, and immaterial, 

pursuant to Section 120.569(2)(g) and Rule 1.14O(f). 

Argument of other decisions of the Commission 

34. 
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(d) Opinion on the behavior of FCG’s management 

35. Mr. Armstrong makes numerous scandalous statements concerning the behavior 

of FCG’s management. He states that that William’s testimony concerning FCG’s attempts to 

terminate the Amendment to the 1998 Agreement “defies belief.’’34 He further states that, in his 

opinion, FCG’s recovery under the CRA “constitute[s] an abuse of those customers . . . ,” and 

further states that ‘‘[tlhis abuse should be considered by the Commission when evaluating how to 

respond to FCG’s numerous admissions of bad management, mistakes, flawed analyses, and 

omissions with regard to Miami-Dade and the 2008 TSA.”35 He continues to accuse FCG of 

“abuse” of its customers, as well as mismanagement and violations. He then, in a self-serving 

statement, says: 

I can think of no reasonable explanation for such path and the corresponding 
mismanagement, admitted by FCG, which would permit FCG to retroactively 
recover from other customers phantom costs in such a manner as would violate 
the prohibition against retroactive raternaking?6 

As argued in relation to scandalous material contained in Mr. Armstrong’s direct testimony) this 

type of testimony is inappropriate and improper. The Commission should not tolerate such 

inflammatory tone and language. This is opinion testimony outside the purview of even an 

expert witness that serves no probative value for the Commission’s analysis of the facts or law. 

There is no evidentiary basis for such inappropriate language or charges. These comments by 

MDWAD’s witness do not assist the Commission in arriving at a decision in this matter, and 

should be stricken as scandalous, irrelevant and impertinent pursuant to Section 120.569(2)(g) 

and Rule 1,14O(f). 

Amstrong Rebuttal, p. 6, line 10. 
Armstrong Rebuttal, p. 6, lines 10-16. 

34 

33 

Armstrong Rebuttal, p, 8, lines 7-1 1 36 
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Hypothetical motion in limine 

36.  At pages 8-9 of his Rebuttal, Mr. Armstrong argues that the Commission should 

preclude FCG from filing any incremental cost of service information or study. He goes so far as 

to state: 

It is my opinion and experience in utility regulatory matters, generally, and before 
this Commission, specifically, that Commission precedent and notions of 
procedural due process and fairness requires that FCG be foreclosed from 
attempting to provide such information at the hearing to be held in this 
pr~ceeding.~’ 

MDWASD again offers Mr. Armstrong’s legal argument as well as his opinion on Commission 

procedure, which is improper. 

37. What is more outrageous is that MDWASD, through this rebuttal testimony, is 

asking this Commission what is tantamount to a motion in limine, to exclude evidence that has 

not been presented by FCG. This is indicative and demonstrative of why the Commission should 

disqualify Mr. Armstrong and strike his testimony: he now purports to appear on behalf of 

MDWASD as a “witness,” masquerading as an unqualified expert offering the Commission legal 

advice. This “testimony” that is actually legal argument is at best premature, and at its core 

designed to prejudice FCG’s ability to get a fair hearing. This testimony does not aid the 

Commission in making a decision in this docket, is irrelevant, and should be stricken in 

accordance with Section 120.569(2)(g) and Rule 1.140(f). 

38. Based on the foregoing and in the alternative, FCG respectfully requests that the 

Commission strike the above-referenced portions of MDWASD’s witness Mr. Armstrong’s 

direct and rebuttal testimonies, pursuant to Section 120.569(2)(g) and Rule 1.140(f). 

37 Armstrong Rebuttal, p. 9, lines 15- 19. 
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111. CONCLUSION 

39. Based on the foregoing, FCG respectfully requests that the Commission reject 

MDWASD’s attempt to have Mr. Armstrong appear in this docket as both a lawyer and a witness 

and disqualify Mr. Armstrong as both attorney and witness in this proceeding, in violation of 

Rule 4-3.7(a), Rule 4-3.4(e) of the Rules Regulating The Florida Bar. In the alternative, FCG 

respectfully requests that the Commission strike portions of Mr. Armstrong’s direct and rebuttal 

testimonies for being in contravention of Sections 90.604 and 90.701, Florida Statutes, and for 

being impertinent, irrelevant, immaterial, redundant and scandalous, pursuant to pursuant to 

Section 120.569(2)(g), Florida Statutes, and Rule I ,  140(f), Florida Rules of Civil Procedure. 

Respectfully submitted this 1 8‘h day of March, 201 1. 

Floyd R. Self, Esq., B.C.S: - - . 
Robert J. Telfer 111, Esq. 
Messer, Caparello & Self, P.A. 
26 18 Centennial Place 
Tallahassee, Florida 32308 
Tel. 850-222-0720 
Fax. 850-558-0656 

Shannon 0. Pierce, Esq. 
AGL Resources Inc. 
Ten Peachtree Place, 1 S* Floor 
Atlanta, GA 30309 
Tel. 404-584-3394 

Counsel for Florida Ciy Gas 
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From: “Armstrong, Brian” <barmstrong@ngn-tally.corn> 
To: “Feil. Matthew (OC-TIh)” <IhlCEAEX- 

rn> 
Date: 
Subject: 
Department 
Attachments: 

Matt, 

O - A K E R M A N + 2 O S E N T E R F I T T _ O U - F I R S T + 2 O ~ M ~ l S ~ T I V ~ + ~ ~ R O U P ~ ~ = R E C I P I ~ N ~ ~ ~ = M F E I L Q g u n s t e r ,  co 

10/30/2009 I I :28 AM 
Draft of Proposed Petition to Florida Public Service Commission Byhliami-Dade Water and Sewer 

pet. for gas trans. STV agrmtdraft 5 . d ~  

As we discussed a couple of day  ago, attached is a draft of apetition to the FPSC concerning the Florida City GadMiami-Dade 
transportation agreement. 

MDWSD would like to get the petition filed as soon as possible. The petition has been drafted for the purpose of getting formal PSC 
action 011 the existing agreement. Without such action, MDM’SD is unable to explain to the Miami-Dade Board of County 
Commissioners why thc agreement reached between the parties has not been placed into effect as no PSC action has occurred to date. 

My client believes, and I expect that yours does as well, that Florida City Gas management and MDWSD entered an agrement in 
good faith and with knowledge that the agreement’s tenns wcre in the best interests of both patties. We wish to pursue Commission 
approval of the agreement together with FCG officials even if PSC staff deems its judgment of the best intmst of the parties to be 
superior to the considered judgment ofPCG managerial personnel who entered the agreement. It is our desire that MDWSD and FCO 
present our position Y a unified front and that all steps taken fmm this point faward be taken together. 

You will note that we request, first, a PSC concession that the agreement is exempt from its scrutiny (as MDWSD is the utility 
department for Miami-Dade County, not a sepmte and distinct entity and thus the rule exemption applies). In the alternative, we 
request that the agreement be approved IS a special cantract and we list tMms that deviate from the rate schedule invoked in the 
agreement. 

We have addressed the potential expiration issue Nith paragraph 23 with the expectation that FCGMDWSD cooperation from this 
point forward would avoid anything further having to be done in that regard. 

Please miew the attached with your client and respond to me at your earliest convenience. We would bc pleased to modi@ the 
anached draR to add FCG as a joint petitioner. 

Thank )ou for )our assistance. 

Brian 

EXHIBIT ‘73” 



BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In re: Petition of the Miami-Dade Water 
and Sewer Department of Miami-Dade County 
for Approval of Special Gas Transportation 
Service Agreement 

Docket No. - GU 

Filed: November , 2009 

PETITION FOR APPROVAL OF SPECIAL 
GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE AGREEMlENT 

Pursuant to Section 366.06, Florida Statutes and Rules 25-9.034 and 25-22.036, 

Florida Administrative Code, the Miami-Dade Water and Sewer Department of Miami- 

Dade County (MDWSD) petitions the Commission for approval of a special gas 

transportation service agreement with Florida City Gas (“FCG” or “Company”). In 

support of this petition, MDWSD states: 

I .  The name of the petitioner and the mailing address of its principal ofice 

in Florida are: 

Miami Dade Water and Sewer Department 
3071 Southwest 38* Avenue 
Suite 5 14 
Miami, FL 33146-1520 

2. The names and mailing addresses of the persons authorized to receive 

notices and communications with respect to this petition are: 

On Behalf of MDWSD: 

Joseph A. Ruiz, Jr. 
Deputy Director - Operations 
Miami-Dade County 
Water and Sewer Department 
3071 SW 38 Avenue, Suite 514 
Miami, FL 33 146-1 520 



On Behalf of FCG: 

Matthew Feil 
Akerman Senterfitt 
106 E. College Avenue, Suite 1200 
Tallahassee, FL 32301 
(850) 425-1614 

Elizabeth Wade 
AGL Resources, Inc. 
Location 1470 
Ten Peachtree Plaza 
Atlanta, GA 30309 

3. The Miami Dade Water and Sewer Department is the public utility 

department of Miami-Dade County government responsible for the provision of water 

and wastewater service to approximately 2,300,000 residents of the County. MDWSD 

purchases natural gas to power certain facilities used to produce high quality water and 

distribute the water to MDWSD customers. MDSWD’s substantial interests will be 

affected by the Commission’s disposition of this Petition in that MDWSD purchases 

transportation service fiom FCG and the cost of such service has increased more than 

tenfold as a result of FCG actions to date, as described later in this Petition. Favorable 

Commission consideration of the requests made in this Petition is required to avoid a 

bypass by MDWSD of FCG facilities and the concomitant loss by FCG of associated 

revenues. 

4. FCG, formerly known as City Gas Company of Florida (“City Gas”), 

currently is an operating division of Piyotal Utility Holdings, Inc. (which itself is a 

subsidiary of AGL Resources, Inc.). FCG is an investor-owned natural gas utility 



company subject to the regulatory jurisdiction of the Commission as prescribed in 

Chapter 366, Florida Statutes. 

5 .  FCG’s predecessor, City Gas, by and through NU1 Corporation (its 

parent), executed a Natural Gas Transportation Service Agreement with Miami-Dade 

County on October 29, 1999 the terms of which became effective on July 1, 1998 (the 

“1998 Agreement”), a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A. The 1998 

Agreement had a ten-year term expiring on July 1 , 2008, with no automatic renewal. 

6. When the 1998 Agreement neared expiration, MDWSD and FCG signed a 

First Amendment to the 1998 Agreement (the “Amendment”). The Amendment extended 

the term of the 1998 Agreement on a month-to-month basis as of July 1,2008. A copy of 

the Amendment is attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

7. FCG and MDWSD simultaneously negotiated a successor agreement to 

the 1998 Agreement which was signed and dated August 28, 2008 (the “2008 

Agreement”), a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit C. The 2008 Agreement 

contains the same pricing provisions as the 1998 Agreement, and many of the other 

provisions in the 2008 Agreement are similar if not identical to those in the 1998 

Agreement. 

8. Under the 2008 Agreement, FCG is to receive natural gas for MDWSD at 

the same Points of Receipt with Florida Gas Transmission Company in Miami and 

Hialeah, Florida as currently in use; transport such quantities on the FCG distribution 

system; and redeliver such gas to Points of Delivery at the same three MDWSD facilities 

currently served, with a maximum annual contract quantity (“MACQ) per site as 

follows: (1) Alexander Orr Water Treatment Plant, 4,200,000 therms; (2) Hialeah Lime 



Reclamation Facility, 3,300,000 therms; (3) South District Wastewater Treatment Plant, 

400,000 therms. 

9. FCG, by and through its attorney, initidly filed the 2008 Agreement with 

the Commission by petition dated November 13, 2008 (the “FCG Petition”). The FCG 

Petition identified several benefits for FCG customers arising from the 2008 Amendment. 

These benefits were identified in paragraph 11 of the FCG Petition which is repeated in 

its entirety as follows: 

The agreement provisions are justified, are in the best 
interest of FCG and do not harm FCG’s ratepayers 
because (a) FCG will recover its cost to serve Miami- 
Dade County via the rates charged to Miami-Dade 
County, (b) serving Miami-Dade County removes from 
the general body of ratepayers costs that would 
otherwise be alIocated to those ratepayers in the 
absence of the agreement, (c) losing Miami-Dade 
County as a customer would be detrimental to the 
general body of ratepayers, and (d) Miami-Dade 
County negotiated the agreement at arm’s length with 
FCG and Miami-Dade County approved the agreement 
as being in the best interest Miami-Dade County and its 
citizenry.” 

Indeed, MDWSD’s purchase of services from FCG has long been recognized as of  

material significance to FCG. In a 2000 FCG general rate increase proceeding, the 

Commission’s order notes that services to large customers like MDWSD (then known as 

the Miami-Dade Water and Sewer Authority) allowed FCG to spread the cost of FCG’s 

recent purchase of the Homestead lateral “over a larger customer base, and provide the 

higher reliability and degree of safety,. ,” (Order PSC-01-03 16 issued February 5,2001 in 

Docket No. 000768). 

10. MDWSD did not receive notice of the filing of the FCG Petition or a copy 

thereof at the time of its filing with the Commission. 



1 1. Subsequent to the filing of the FCG Petition, Commission Staff presented 

FCG with certain data requests. In response to Staff Data Request No. 1, FCG suggested 

that it had mis-stated in paragraph 11 of the FCG Petition that FCG ‘’will recover its cost 

to serve [MDWSD] via the rates charged to [MDWSD].” FCG, however, repeated and 

elaborated upon the several benefits to FCG and its customers from the continuation of 

service to MDW’SD at the rates agreed upon in the 2008 Agreement. A copy of the FCG 

response to Staff Data Request No. 1 is attached hereto as Exhibit D. 

12. On February 17, 2009, after receiving and responding to additional Staff 

data requests, FCG unilaterally, and without notice to MDWSD, withdrew the 2008 

Amendment from the Commission’s consideration. 

13, Upon information and belief, the Commission docket opened to consider 

the FCG Petition, Docket 080672-GU, was closed administratively by the Commission 

on or about February 25,2009. 

14. By this Petition, MDWSD requests that the Commission either recognize 

that the 2008 Agreement is not subject to the Commission’s regulatory jurisdiction or 

approve the terms of the 2008 Agreement. In addition, MDWSD requests that the 

Commission order FCG to refund to MDWSD the difference between the 2008 

Agreement rates and the rates which FCG has been charging, and MDWSD has been 

paying to FCG under protest, for service rendered on and after July 21,2009. In support 

of these requests, MDWSD states as follows: 

15, The 2008 Apreement is Exempt from Commission Jurisdiction. In 

footnote 2 on page 4 of the FCG Petition, FCG cites the exemption contained in Rule 25- 

9.034( l), Florida Administrative Code, which exempts contracts “by or between a public 



utility and a municipality or R.E.A. cooperative.” FCG renders its interpretation of the 

exemption language to suggest that the exemption may apply only to a “municipal 

utility” but notes that FCG does not oppose an interpretation of the exemption which 

would include hliami-Dade County and thus “obviate the need for the instant petition.” 

16. MDWSD and FCG agree that the 2008 Agreement falls within the 

exemption in Rule 25-9.034(1) as Miami Dade County is a “municipality” and the 

transportation service being rendered by FCG is rendered on behalf of the utility 

department of Miami-Dade County, MDWSD. For this reason, MDWSD asserts that the 

2008 Agreement is exempt from Commission rate-setting jurisdiction in the same manner 

that other transportation senpice agreements between natural gas transmission companies 

and municipalities are exempt. 

17. The 2008 Agreement is a special contract not specificallv covered by 

FCG’s standard amroved rate schedules which provides cost benefits to FCG 

customers and avoids the loss of MDWSD as a transDortation customer. As 

indicated earlier in this Petition, FCG withdrew the FCG Petition without consulting with 

MDWSD. Such withdrawal was not in accordance with the terms of the 2008 

Agreement, This Petition is filed to request recognition of the exemption of the 2008 

Agreement from Commission rate consideration’ or, in the alternative, to obtain 

Commission authorization for FCG to provide transportation services to MDWSD 

pursuant to the terms of the 2008 Agreement as a special contract, in recognition of the 

significant potential for loss of MDWSD as a FCG transportation customer. 

I MDWSD notes that the 1998 Agreement was not presented for Commission approval 
and reyenue for the past ten (IO) years from the rendition of transportation services by 



18. MDWSD and FCG confirmed the applicability of FCG’s Contract 

Demand Service Rate Schedule in Article I, section 1 of the 2008 Agreement. The 2008 

further recognizes that “[e]xcept to the extent expressly modified by the terms of this 

Agreement, all service rendered by [FCG] under this Agreement shall be provided 

pursuant to the terms and conditions of [FCG’s] tariff, ...” The terms in the 2008 

Agreement which expressly modify terms in the above-referenced tariff rate schedule and 

thus are not specifically covered b j  such schedule are as follows: 

Article V provides FCG certainty of the recovery of a minimum level of revenue 

by establishing a minimum annual volume of 1,250,000 therms per year and a 

maximum daily quantity of 24,500 therms, subject to increases as may be 

negotiated between the parties; 

transportation rates are identified in Article VI1 as (1) $.Ol/therrn for the 

Alexander Orr Water Treatment Plant; (2) $.03/therm for the Hialeah Lime 

Reclamation Facility, and (3) $.03/therm for the South District Wastewater 

Treatment Plant; 

Article IX contains full requirements commitments whereby MDWSD commits to 

using only FCG for the transportation of natural gas to the above-described 

facilities; 

Article I provides a ten year term; and 

the agreement is required to retain existing transportation services and associated 

revenue for FCG and its customers. 

FCG on behalf of MDWSD, one of FCG’s largest customers (if not the largest) was 
included in annual reporting to the Commission. 



19. Since the date of withdrawal by FCG ofthe FCG Petition, MDWSD and 

FCG endeavored to reach a new agreement, however, such efforts were unsuccessful 

largely due to the fact that MDWSD remains convinced that the 2008 Agreement either is 

exempt fiom Commission jurisdiction, as was the 1998 Agreement, or FCG should not 

have withdrawn the 2008 Agreement prior to formal Commission consideration of the 

FCG Petition. 

20. By letter dated June 22, 2009, FCG advised MDWSD that FCG was 

invoking the thirty (30) day termination notice provided in the Amendment. Further, 

FCG advised MDWSD that it would charge MDWSD “the approved tariff rates 

applicable to Miami-Dade’s class of service.” See FCG letter dated June 22, 2009, 

attached hereto as Exhibit E. The new rates being charged by FCG increased MDWSD 

bills by more than 1000Y0, including the assessment of demand and service rate charges 

never before assessed to MDWSD. 

21, It hardly needs to be stated that MDWSD is now an extremely dissatisfied 

customer of CGT. Bills have been rendered by FCG and paid by MDWSD, under protest 

and subject to refund, pending the Commission’s response to this Petition. MDWSD has 

initiated discussions with a competing natural gas transmission company with the 

expectation that service can be obtained much cheaper than the current tariff rate being 

charged by FCG. 

22. It is clear to MDWSD that FCG withdrew the FCG Petition prior to the 

Commission ever having had the opportunity to consider it due to some proverbial 

reading of the Commission Staff tea leaves. According to FCG, the tea leaves indicated 

that Staff would not recommend that the Commission approve the rate set forth in the 



2008 Agreement. MDWSD presents the 2008 Agreement to the Commission once again, 

with FCG concurrence, to request either Commission recognition that its terms are not 

subject to Commission jurisdiction or the issuance of Commission authorization to FCG 

to continue to provide service to MDWSD pursuant to its terms. MDWSD notes that the 

Mimi-Dade County Board of County Commissioners has not authorized MDWSD to 

use FCG’s services under any terms inconsistent with the 2008 Agreement. Since FCG 

withdrew the FCG Petition prior to any official Commission action, FCG and MDSWD 

remain in a quandary to this date. In short, Commission action is required and MDWSD 

requests Commission action consistent with one of the alternative remedies presented in 

this Petition. 

23. MDWSD acknowledges that the terms of the 2008 Agreement suggest that 

the 2008 Agreement may no longer be in force and effect since the Commission has not 

approved the Agreement and 180 days have expired since it was signed by the parties. 

However, as noted in this Petition, neither Miami-Dade County or its utility department, 

MDWSD, were consulted regarding FCG’s unilateral decision to withdraw the 

Agreement from Cornmission consideration. MDWSD does not wish to pursue civil 

action at this time against FCG in light of what may be considered FCG’s bad faith and 

breach of Article XI1 of the 2008 Agreement which provides, in pertinent part: “(1) 

Neither [FCG] nor [MDWSD] or its agents, shall be liable for damages to the other for 

any act, omission, or circumstance occasioned by or in consequence of ... the binding 

order of any court or governmental authority, which has been resisted in good faith by all 

reasonable legal means;, , , , (2) Such cause or contingencies affecting the performance by 

[FCGJ, Third Party Supplier, or [MDWSD], however, shall not relieve [FCG] or 



[MDWSD] of liabijity in the event of its concurrent negligence, or in the event of its 

failure to use due diligence to remedy the situation and remove the cause in an adequate 

manner . . , ." MDWSD has consulted with FCG representatives and is confident that FCG 

will sign any document necessary to confirm the effectiveness of the terms of the 2008 

Agreement upon favorable Commission reaction to this Petition. 

WHEREFOE, MDWSD requests that the Commission either recognize that the 

2008 Agreement is exempt from Commission jurisdiction pursuant to Rule 25-9.034(1), 

F.A.C. or approve the gas transportation arrangements contained in the 2008 Agreement 

as a special contract under the same rule. 

Dated: November , 2009 

Joseph A. Ruiz, Jr. 
Deputy Director - Operations 
Miami-Dade County 
Water and Sewer Department 
3071 SW 38 Avenue, Suite 514 
Miami, FL 33146-1520 
Telephone: (786) 552-8200 
Facsimile: (786) 552-85 13 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing was sent by 

email and U S .  mail to Mary Anne Helton, Office of the General Counsel, Florida Public 

Service Commission, 2540 Shumard Oak Blvd., Tallahassee, FL32399-0850; Matthew 

Feil, Merman Senterfitt, 106 E. College Avenue, Suite 1200, Tallahassee, FL 32301; and 

Elizabeth Wade, AGL Resources, Inc., Location 1470, Ten Peachtree Plaza, Atlanta, GA 

30309, this day of November, 2009. 

Joseph A. Ruiz, Jt. 



EXHIBIT A 

1998 Natural Gas Transportation Service Agreement Between 
NU1 Corporation represented by City Gas Company of Florida and 

Miami-Dade County 



EXHIBIT B 

First "Imendment to Natural Gas Transportation Sewice: Agreement Between 
Florida City Gas and Miami-Dade County 



EXHIBIT C 

Natural Gas Transportation Service Agreement between Pivotal Utility Holdings, Inc. 
d/b/a Florida City Gas and Miami-Dade County for the Miami-Dade Water and Sewer 

Department dated August 28,2008 (“2008 Agreement”) 



EXHIBIT D 

FCG response ta Staff Data Request No. I 



EXHIBIT E 

FCG letter to Miami-Dade Water and Sewer Department dated June 22,2009 



Jack Langer 

F m :  
Sent: 
To: 
s u b j e  

Armstrong, Brian [barmstrong@ngn-tallyxomj 
Monday, August 37,2009 $25 PM 
Jack Langer 
RE: subcontract work for Langer Energy Consulting, tnc. 

Jack, 
1 hereby accept the arrangement indicated on behalf of Nabws, Giblin 8 Nickerson, PA with the understanding that work 
to be performed shall be on behalf of government utilities or utilii authorities. As we discussed, NGN prides itself in 
representing only government owned utility systems. 
Please provide me with the documents indicated for my review. Thank you and we look fotward to wwklng with you. Brian 

From: Jack Langer ~mailk,:jlangerl@belluouth.n~] 
Sent: mu 8/27/2009 11:W AM 
To: Annstrong, Brian 
Cc: ‘Rub; Joseph A. (WASD)’ 
Subject: subcontract work for Langer Energy Consulttng, Inc. 

Dear Brian, 

As a follow up of our phone conversation this morning, this will advise that LEC wishes to hire you in a sub-contactor 
basis to assist in legal work that may come before the PSC. This arrangement can be a very simple agreement where you 
agree to perform certain duties as directed from time to time at the rate of $200 per hour. You may send,your invoice 
to my attention on a monthty basis, along with notatlon of activities performed and you will be reimbursed directly by 
us. At this point in time we do not know how long the project will take but we would like to have your acceptance as 
,soon as possibte 50 that we may send data for your review. If you agree with the above, please send your acceptance 
email a t  your earliest. As soon as acceptance is received we will fill you in on details and share all information with you. 

Our information is as follows: 

Langer Energy Consulting, lnc. 
913 Andalusia Avenue 
Coral Gables, FL 33134 

Phone: 305.444.1731 
Cell: 305.216.1315 
Fax: 305.444.1731 
Ernail: Jlanp;erl@bellsouth.net 

I may also be reached.& my N. C. residence @ 828.526.9151 

Thank you for your attention to this matter. 1 took forward to working with you as we get this PSC related issue 
resolved. Should you have any questions concerning this agreement please call at  your convenience. 

Sincerely, 

EXHIBIT “C” 
1 

DocketNo. 0905394U 
MM= Response to FCG First POD 
Item No 6 
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